
County Commissioners Hearing Room 

400 High Street 
Chestertown, Maryland  

 
AGENDA 

 
Monday, July 17, 2023 

5:00 p.m. 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings in person or listen to the meeting via the audio-only phone 
number and conference identification number listed below.  
 

1. Dial 1-872-239-8359 
2. Enter Conference ID: 496 403 880# 
 

Members of the public are asked to mute their phones/devices, until the Commission Chair opens the floor for 
comment.  
 
MINUTES 
 
April 17, 2023 
 
APPLICATIONS FOR REVIEW: 
 
23-39 Kent Manor Grain, LLC – Variance – Front, Rear, and Side Yard Setbacks 
 Map 14, Parcel 75 – Second Election District – Agricultural Zoning District (AZD)  
 
 
GENERAL DISCUSSION 
 
ADJOURN  
 
 

APPLICANT OR REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE PRESENT 
 

APPLICANTS ARRIVING MORE THAN 10 MINUTES AFTER THE SCHEDULED HEARING WILL NOT BE HEARD  
AND WILL BE RESCHEDULED AT THE APPLICANT’S EXPENSE. 

 
Meetings are conducted in Open Session unless otherwise indicated.  All or part of the Board of Appeals meetings can be held 
in closed session under the authority of the MD Open Meetings Law by vote of the members.  Breaks are at the call of the 
Chairman.  Meetings are subject to audio and video recordings. 
 
All applications will be given the time necessary to assure full public participation and a fair and complete review of all 
projects.  Agenda items are subject to change due to cancellations.   
Other business without assigned times may be discussed during the meeting.   





 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 
Meeting: Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals 
Date:  April 17, 2023 
Time:  5:35 P.M. 
Location: County Commissioners Hearing Room, 400 High Street, Chestertown, Maryland 
 

Agenda Item Sitting for the Board Action Taken Vote 

23-15 Thomas and Susan 
Schwarzwalder – Buffer Variance 
 
The applicants are requesting a 
variance to replace 88 feet of an 
existing 4-foot high fence in the 
buffer. The property is located at 
9827 Breezecroft Lane, 
Chestertown.  
 
The in-kind replacement fence 
will follow the same configuration 
as the existing fence in the front 
yard of a waterfront property, will 
be 4 feet high, will include two 
gates, and will be set in concrete. 
A 2” x 4” wire fence is to be 
added and attached to the 
wooden structure. 
 
The Kent County Planning 
Commission forwarded a 
favorable recommendation to the 
Board of Appeals in regard to this 
application. 
 
Applicant/Representative 
Thomas Schwarzwalder, property 
owner, was sworn in and 
presented a summary of the case.  
 
Public Comment 
No correspondence was received 
on this application.  
 
Planning Staff 
Mark Carper, LEED Green 
Associate, Associate Planner, was 
sworn in. 

Dr. Albert Townshend, 
Chairman 
 
Joan Horsey, Member  
 
John Massey, Member 
 
Mr. Christopher Drummond, 
Attorney for the Board  
 
Campbell Safian, Clerk 
 
 

 

Ms. Horsey made a motion to grant a 
buffer variance to replace 88 feet of  
existing 4-foot high fence in the 
buffer area at 9827 Breezecroft Lane 
in the Sixth Election District, owned 
by Thomas and Susan Schwarzwalder 
which is zoned Critical Area 
Residential (CAR). The variance is 
granted with the following 
conditions: the boundary line is to be 
located prior to the installation of 
the proposed fencing, a Buffer 
Management Plan for mitigating the 
impacts of installation is to be 
submitted to the Planning 
Department for review and approval 
before the fence is installed, a 3:1 
mitigation ratio locating the 
plantings between the 
improvements and the shoreline, the 
variance will lapse after the 
expiration of one year if no 
substantial construction in 
accordance with the plans herein 
presented occurs. 
 
The motion was seconded by Mr. 
Massey; the motion passed with all 
in favor.  

Unanimous 
Approval  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT 



Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals                April 17, 2023   Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
             /s/ Campbell Safian_________  
Dr. Albert Townshend, Chairman      Campbell Safian, Planning Specialist 

Agenda Item Sitting for the Board Action Taken Vote 

MINUTES: March 13, 2023  

 
Dr. Townshend moved to approve 
the minutes. Mr. Massey seconded 
the motion; the motion passed with 
all in favor. 

Approved 

Adjourn 

 

 
 
 

 

Mr. Massey made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting, and Ms. Horsey 
seconded the motion; the motion 
passed with all in favor. The meeting 
adjourned at 5:56 p.m. 

Unanimous 
Approval 

DRAFT 



July 10, 2023  
 
Dr. Al Townshend 
Kent County Board of Appeals  
400 High Street 
Chestertown, MD 21620 
 
RE:   Kent Manor Grain, LLC  

Variances – Front, Side and Rear Yard Setback 
 
Dr. Townshend: 
 
At its meeting on July 6, 2023, the Kent County Planning Commission reviewed the application of Kent Manor 
Grain, LLC, requesting setback variances from the minimum 600-foot setback requirement in order to construct a 
152-foot by 75-foot waste management structure. The proposed building will be located on a 20-acre parcel in 
the center of the larger farm on Augustine Herman Highway. 
 
The Commission opined that a practical difficulty was due to size and shape of the parcel. After discussion and 
consideration of the applicant’s testimony, the Commission voted to make a favorable recommendation for the 
variance. The Commission’s recommendation was based on the following findings of fact: 
 

• Granting a variance will not cause a substantial detriment to neighboring properties nor will it change the 
character of the neighborhood and district. 

• The proposal is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the general intent of the Land Use Ordinance. 
 
Sincerely, 
Kent County Planning Commission 
 
 
 
F. Joseph Hickman 
Chair 
 
FJH/cmg 
 
cc:  Gary Miller 



Department of Planning, Housing, and Zoning 
 

 
To: Kent County Planning Commission 
From: Carla Gerber, Deputy Director 
Meeting: July 6, 2023 
Subject: Kent Manor Grain, LLC 
 23-39: Setback Variance 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 
 
Request by the Applicant 
Gary Miller of Kent Manor Grain, LLC, is requesting variances of 353 feet from the front yard setback, 200 feet 
from the side yard setback, and 310 feet from the rear yard setback in order to construct a 152-foot by 75-foot 
waste management structure.   
 
Public Process 
Per Article IX, Section 2.2 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance, the Planning Commission shall review and make 
a recommendation to the Board of Appeals for variances.  The Board of Appeals may authorize variances from the 
yard requirements so as to relieve practical difficulties or other injustices arising out of the strict application of 
the provisions of this Ordinance.  
 
Summary of the Staff Report  
The proposed waste management structure will be located on a 20-acre parcel in the center of the larger farm. 
The parcel was originally created to separate the commercial grain drying operation from the remainder of the 
farm in preparation for creating an agricultural preservation district in 1991. Although an easement was never 
placed on the property, the family has kept the commercial part of the operation separate. The Millers have used 
the proposed building site for temporary storage of manure. The proposed building is considered an agricultural 
best management practice and will allow for better management of manure storage throughout the year.  
 
The proposed structure will not cause substantial detriment to neighboring properties or change the character of 
the district. The closest dwellings not owned by the Miller family are over 1,500 feet from the proposed building. 
The closest church or public building is over 4,000 feet away. The request is consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan, which promotes Kent County as an agriculturally friendly county and promotes the use of best management 
practices. The practical difficulty is due to the size and shape of the parcel. 
 
Staff Recommendation  
Staff recommends forwarding a favorable recommendation to the Board of Appeals for approval of the setback 
variance. 
 
 
 
  



23-39, Kent Manor Grain – Setback Variance – 2 
 

PRELIMINARY STAFF REPORT 
 
To: Kent County Planning Commission 
From: Carla Gerber, Deputy Director 
Subject: Kent Manor Grain LLC 
 23-39: Setback Variance 
Date: June 29, 2023 
 
Description of Proposal 
 
Gary Miller of Kent Manor Grain, LLC, is requesting a variance of the setback requirements to enable construction 
of a waste management structure on a 20-acre parcel located on Augustine Herman Highway in the Second 
Election District. The 152-foot by 75-foot building will be 247 feet from the front property line, 400 feet from the 
east side property line, and 290 feet from the rear property line. It will be used for the storage of manure prior to 
application according to an approved nutrient management plan. The farm is zoned “AZD,” Agricultural Zoning 
District. The parcel is improved with other agricultural buildings. The surrounding farm is also owned by Kent 
Manor Grain, LLC. 
 
History 
 
In 1991, C. Edward Miller separated his commercial grain-drying operation, which is in the center of the farm, 
from the remainder prior to establishing an Agricultural Land Preservation District. He was concerned about 
potential conflicts over the interpretation of the Maryland Agricultural Land Preservation Foundation’s regulations 
regarding commercial operations. However, in order for the subdivision to be approved, he needed variances for 
several buildings on the remainder and for the grain tanks on the proposed parcel. The variances were granted 
upon finding that the proposed “use of his property for agricultural preservation purposes causes him to suffer a 
practical difficulty.” A MALPF easement was never placed on the farm, and the district “expired” in 2012 when 
the State dropped the requirement for districts.  In 2016, the 3.188-acre parcel was increased to 20 acres through 
a lot line adjustment.  
 
Relevant Issues 
 
I. Yard Requirements 
 

A. Applicable Law: Article V, Section 1.4.A.10.5 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance requires a 600-
foot setback from all property lines for waste management structures. 
 

B. Staff Comments: Variances of 353 feet, 200 feet, and 310 feet are needed. 
 
II. Variance 
 

A. Applicable Law: Article IX, Section 2.2 of the Land Use Ordinance authorizes the Board of Appeals to 
grant variances of the yard requirements so as to relieve practical difficulties or other injustices arising 
out of the strict application of the provisions of this Ordinance. Such granting of a variance shall 
comply, as nearly as possible, in every respect to the spirit, intent, and purpose of this Ordinance; it 
being the purpose of this provision to authorize the granting of variation only for reasons of 
demonstrable practical difficulties as distinguished from variations sought for purposes or reasons of 
convenience, profit, or caprice. 



23-39, Kent Manor Grain – Setback Variance – 3 
 

 
 In order to grant a variance, the Board of Appeals must find all of the following: 

a. That the variance will not cause a substantial detriment to adjacent or neighboring property. 
b. That the variance will not change the character of the neighborhood or district. 
c. That the variance is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the general intent of this 

Ordinance. 
d. That the practical difficulty or other injustice was caused by the following: 

i Some unusual characteristic of size or shape of the property. 
ii Extraordinary topographical or other condition of the property. 

iii The use or development of property immediately adjacent to the property, except that this 
criterion shall not apply in the Critical Area. 

e. That the practical difficulty or other injustice was not caused by the applicants’ own actions. 
 

B. Staff Comments: The variances will not cause substantial detriment to neighboring properties or 
change the character of the district. The closest dwellings not owned by the Miller family are over 
1,500 feet from the proposed building. The closest church or public building is over 4,000 feet away. 
The request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, which promotes Kent County as an 
agriculturally friendly county and promotes the use of best management practices.  

 
The practical difficulty is due to the size and shape of the parcel. The original 3.188-acre parcel was 
determined to be the most suitable lot configuration. The 1991 Board of Appeals decision notes: 
 

[T]hat although it would have been easier to parcel out one piece of property from 
the road, that would have created a “zoning nightmare” with the residential units, 
existing farm structures, and the commercial operation; that Health Department 
regulations required that the subdivided parcel be at least three acres; that no 
animals are kept in the Applicant’s cow barn; that agricultural preservation is a goal 
of the Comprehensive Plan; that the Planning Office tried to find the path of least 
resistance and this is what they proposed;…that this proposal would comply with the 
Agricultural Preservation requirements and the spirit of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
In 2016, the parcel was increased to 20 acres in order to meet the definition of a farm which allows 
for agricultural structures as accessory to a farm.  The Millers have used the location of the proposed 
building for short-term storage of manure. The construction of a waste management structure is 
considered a best management practice and will allow for better management of manure storage 
throughout the year.  

 
C. Staff recommends forwarding a favorable recommendation to the Board of Appeals for approval of 

the setback variance. 
 

 



1 inch = 1,000 feet

K

Source: Kent County Department of Planning, Housing, and Zoning. 
Aerial taken Spring 2022. Map prepared July 2023.

Kent Manor Grain, LLC














	4_July_17_2023
	KC_BOA_Mins_April_17_2023_draft
	MINUTES
	Meeting: Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals


	1_Kent Manor Grain setback variance PC ltr to BZA
	1a_Kent Manor Grain Variance staff report
	1b_Kent Manor Aerial
	2 Kent Manor Grain LLC Packet
	3 Kent Manor Grain Building Elevations
	Blank Page



